CHEMICAL HERITAGE FOUNDATION

ROGER S. BOROVOY

Transcript of an Interview Conducted by

David C. Brock

at

Boston, Massachusetts

on

3 August 2007

(With Subsequent Corrections and Additions)

ACKNOWLEDGMENT

This oral history is part of a series supported by grants from the Gordon and Betty Moore Foundation. This series is an important resource for the history of semiconductor electronics, documenting the life and career of Gordon E. Moore, including his experiences and those of others in Shockley Semiconductor, Fairchild Semiconductor, Intel, as well as contexts beyond the semiconductor industry.

This oral history is made possible through the generosity of the Gordon and Betty Moore Foundation.

CHEMICAL HERITAGE FOUNDATION Oral History Program FINAL RELEASE FORM

This document contains my understanding and agreement with Chemical Heritage Foundation with respect to my participation in the audio-recorded interview conducted by <u>David C. Brock</u> on <u>3 August 2007</u>. I have read the transcript supplied by Chemical Heritage Foundation.

- 1. The audio recording, corrected transcript, photographs, and memorabilia (collectively called the "Work") will be maintained by Chemical Heritage Foundation and made available in accordance with general policies for research and other scholarly purposes.
- 2. I hereby grant, assign, and transfer to Chemical Heritage Foundation all right, title, and interest in the Work, including the literary rights and the copyright, except that I shall retain the right to copy, use, and publish the Work in part or in full until my death.
 - The manuscript may be read and the audio recording(s) heard by scholars approved by Chemical Heritage Foundation subject to the restrictions listed below. The scholar pledges not to quote from, cite, or reproduce by any means this material except with the written permission of Chemical Heritage Foundation.
 - I wish to place the conditions that I have checked below upon the use of this interview. I understand that Chemical Heritage Foundation will enforce my wishes until the time of my death, when any restrictions will be removed.

Please check one:

3.

4.

No restrictions for access.

NOTE: Users citing this interview for purposes of publication are obliged under the terms of the Chemical Heritage Foundation Oral History Program to obtain permission from Chemical Heritage Foundation, Philadelphia, Pennsylvania.

Semi-restricted access. (May view the Work. My permission required to quote, cite, or reproduce.)

Restricted access. (My permission required to view the Work, quote, cite, or reproduce.)

This constitutes my entire and complete understanding.

(Signature) Roger Botovov

(Date)

This interview has been designated as Semi-Restricted Access.

One may view the oral history with the permission of CHF. However, the permission of the interviewee is required to quote from, cite, or reproduce the oral history.

Please contact CHF to request permission.



Chemical Heritage Foundation Oral History Program 315 Chestnut Street Philadelphia, Pennsylvania 19106



The Chemical Heritage Foundation (CHF) serves the community of the chemical and molecular sciences, and the wider public, by treasuring the past, educating the present, and inspiring the future. CHF maintains a world-class collection of materials that document the history and heritage of the chemical and molecular sciences, technologies, and industries; encourages research in CHF collections; and carries out a program of outreach and interpretation in order to advance an understanding of the role of the chemical and molecular sciences, technologies, and industries in shaping society.

ROGER S. BOROVOY

| 1935 | Born in Milwaukee, Wisconsin on 13 April |
|--------------|--|
| | Education |
| 1956 | B.S., Chemical and Electrical Engineering and Business, Massachusetts Institute of Technology |
| 1959 | J.D., Harvard Law School |
| | Professional Experience |
| 1961-1963 | Chevron Research Patent Attorney |
| 1963-1974 | Fairchild Camera Instrument Corporation Patent Counsel |
| 1974-1983 | Intel Corporation Served as Vice President, General Counsel, and Secretary |
| 1983-1987 | Served on Boards of Directors for six high technology start-up companies |
| 1987-1995 | Brown & Bain Of Counsel |
| 1995-present | Fish & Richardson, P.C., Silicon Valley office Of Counsel |

ABSTRACT

Roger S. Borovoy worked as counsel at both Fairchild Camera Instrument Corporation and Intel Corporation, placing him at the heart of the semiconductor revolution in America. He begins his oral history discussing his choice of the Massachusetts Institute of Technology (MIT) for his undergraduate degree, as well as his early interest in the law, especially patent law. After a short period of time at Chevron Research, Borovoy began to work as Patent Counsel at Fairchild Camera Instrument Corporation, meeting Gordon Moore; Borovoy quickly became entrenched in the burgeoning electronics industry and legal issues surrounding intellectual property and patents. After fighting legal battles with Motorola, and dealing with international licensing issues, he moved on to working for Intel in 1974. Throughout the remainder of the oral history, Borovoy reflects upon the AMD processor agreement, the Chip Protection Act, Gordon Moore and the culture of Intel, as well as his life after leaving Intel. He provides great insight into what life was like in technology development from the 1960s to the present, the way fortunes were won and lost, and how a select group of people changed the world.

INTERVIEWER

David C. Brock is a senior research fellow with the Center for Contemporary History and Policy of the Chemical Heritage Foundation. As an historian of science and technology, he specializes in oral history, the history of instrumentation, and the history of semiconductor science, technology, and industry. Brock has studied the philosophy, sociology, and history of science at Brown University, the University of Edinburgh, and Princeton University (respectively and chronologically). His most recent publication is *Understanding Moore's Law: Four Decades of Innovation* (Philadelphia: Chemical Heritage Press), 2006, which he edited and to which he contributed.

TABLE OF CONTENTS

| Early Interests, the law, and Fairchild Camera Instrument CorporationWhy he chose MIT. Early interest in law. How he got into Patent lawOffered job by Robert Noyce. Impressions of Noyce and Moore. <i>Kilby v.</i><i>Noyce</i>. Cross-licensing. | 1 |
|---|----|
| Time at Fairchild Companies start breaking off. Trade secret suits. Interactions with Gordon Moore. Metal oxide semiconductors. Difficulties in intellectual property and patent law. Cross Licensing in the Electronics Industry | 19 |
| Fighting Motorola Les Hogan comes from Motorola. Motorola files suit on trade secrets. Court battle and settlement. Licensing and Japan. Highly profitable. Different forms of licensing. | 35 |
| Working at IntelArrives in 1974. Interactions with Noyce and Moore. Andrew Grove.AT&T sues Intel. No existing record of depositions. AMD microprocessor agreement. Five year arbitration. Trial after he left. | 46 |
| Chip Protection Act and Other Legal Issues Wrote original draft. Act wasn't really important. HR legal responsibilities | |
| Gordon Moore as a Person Very reserved but employee focused. Opposite personality of Noyce. Working for Gordon Moore. | |
| Life after Intel Private practice. Venture capital in the current market. Patent infringement. | |
| The Culture of Intel Gordon Moore's influence. Integrity. Honesty. | 77 |
| Index | 82 |

INDEX

8080, 72-73 8086, 51, 53, 54

A

Advanced Micro Devices [AMD], 29, 52-53, 56, 71-72 Amelco, 30 AMI Semiconductor, 20 AT&T, 45, 47, 49-50

B

Bain, Randy, 67 Bakalar, David and Leo, 32 Bell Telephone Laboratories, 12, 45, 47 Berlin, Leslie, 29 Blanchett, Gene, 34 Blank, Julius, 64 Bobb, Howard, 20 Boucher, Richard, 20-21 Brown and Bain, 34, 67 Brown, Jack, 34-35, 67 Buried layer epitaxy, 8 Burke, Walter, 33-35 Busicom, 46, 53

С

California, 4-5, 67 Central Processing Unit [CPU], 56 Chevron Corporation, 4-6 Chip Protection Act, 54-55 Clark, Jim, 66 Compaq, 58, 65-66 Complementary Metal Oxide Semiconductor [CMOS], 23 Corrigan, Wilfred, 33-34 Court of Customs and Patent Appeals [CCPA], 9, 13, 50 Cross license, 14-15, 27, 32, 38-39, 46, 51 Cypress Semiconductor, 65-67

D

Dallas, Texas, 65 Derrick and Frosch, 48 Digital Equipment Company [DEC], 27-28 Doerr, John, 68 DuPont, 17, 22 Dwork, Leo, 34, 54 Dynamic Random Access Memory [DRAM], 56, 72

Е

Early, Jim, 19, 34 Eau Claire, Wisconsin, 1 Edgerton, Germeshausen and Greer, 3 Edgerton, Harold, 2, 3 Elizabeth, New Jersey, 4 Emeryville, California, 4 Erasable Programmable Read-Only Memory, 62 Exxon Mobil Corporation, 3, 4

F

Faggin, Federico, 22
Fairchild Semiconductor Company, 2, 6-10, 13, 15-16, 18-25, 27, 29-31, 33-34, 38-39, 41-46, 59, 61-62, 64
Fairchild, Sherman, 23-24, 33
Farina, Don, 20
Ferguson, Phil, 20
Flehr and Swain, 5-6
Fuller, Calvin, 48

G

Galvin, Paul, 38 Galvin, Robert W., 33-34, 38-39 General Electric Company [GE], 4 General Microelectronics [GMe], 19-21, 25 Grinich, Vic, 64 Grove, Andrew S., 8-9, 23, 30, 43, 44-45, 55, 57-58, 60, 72

H

Harvard Law School, 3 Harvard University, 3-4 Henchman, Walter, 33 Hewlett Packard [HP], 64 Hodgson, Richard, 14, 17, 31, 32 Hoerni, Jean, 6, 16, 30, 64 Hogan, C. Lester, 8, 10, 15, 29, 32-38, 68 Hohbach, Harold, 6

I

Integrated circuit, 6, 10, 14, 16, 56 Intel Corporation, 9, 20, 22-23, 25, 27-28, 34, 42-46, 48-59, 61-63, 66, 68-72 International Business Machines [IBM], 4, 27, 42, 50, 53, 54 International Telephone & Telegraph [IT&T], 34, 42 Intersil, 30, 46

J

Japan, 16-18, 32, 37, 40-42, 53-54, 56-57

K

Kaplan, Sandy, 62 Kapor, Mitch, 65 Kennedy, John F., 19-20 Kilby, Jack St. Clair, 6, 9-11, 13-14, 49-50 Kirkland & Ellis, 38 Klein, Tom, 22 Kleiner Perkins, 64, 68 Kleiner, Eugene, 64

L

Lamond, Pierre, 32 Las Vegas, Nevada, 34 Lehovec, Kurt, 14 LG Electronics, 28 Lippincott & Ralls, 5-6, 9 Lippincott, Don, 5 Los Altos, California, 7, 68 Lotus, 58, 65-66

Μ

Massachusetts Institute of Technology [MIT], 1-2, 17, 32 McPherson, Alan, 13 mesa transistor, 10 Metal Oxide Semiconductor [MOS], 19, 21-22, 23, 46, 62 Micrologic, 16, 18-19 Microma, 20, 62-63 Micron Technology, Inc., 20 Microprocessor, 28, 46, 52-53, 72 Microsoft, 72 Milwaukee, Wisconsin, 1 Mims, Matt, 15 Moore, Gordon E., 7, 12, 20-22, 24-26, 29-30, 34, 39, 43-44, 51-52, 54, 57-64, 71 Moore, Steve, 7 Morgan Stanley, 65 Mosher, "Mo", 13 Mostek, 46, 49, 55, 69 Motorola Corporation, 18, 33-39, 43, 50, 67.69 Mountain View, California, 21 Mueller, Forman, 38-39 Mueller, Isabelle, 39 Multi-emitter device, 7 Murray Hill, New Jersey, 47-48

N

New York, New York, 48, 65-66 Nippon Electric Company [NEC], 16-18, 40-41, 50-51, 53 Noyce, Robert N., 6-7, 9-15, 17-19, 21, 23-24, 29-32, 42-45, 49-50, 53, 55, 57, 59-60, 62, 64, 66, 71

0

Olivetti, 18

Р

Palevsky, Max, 62 Palo Alto, California, 21 Patent infringement, 67 Patent Law Association, 5 Pearson, Gerald L., 12-13 Phoenix, Arizona, 34 Pillsbury, Madison & Sutro, 5 Planar process, 6, 14-16, 22, 42 Porter, Edwin, 8, 26 Portland, Oregon, 34 Poss, Ellen, 65 Proteon, 66

R

Ralls, John, 6, 9, 66 Raytheon, 25 Republic of Korea, 57 Rheem Semiconductor, 25, 27 Rines, David, 3 Robeson, Robert, 20 Rock, Arthur, 63-64 Rosen, Ben, 65, 69

S

Sah, Chih-Tang [C. T.], 7 San Jose, California, 55 Sanders, Jerry, 29-30, 34-35 Sello, Harry, 4, 18 Sevin, LJ, 48, 55, 58, 65, 69 Shockley Semiconductor Laboratories, 5 Shockley, William B., 7 Signetics, 19, 21 Silicon gate, 22-23 Silicon Graphics, 65-66 Silicon Valley, 65, 67 Societa Generale Semiconduttore [SGS], 18, 31 Sony Corporation, 17 Spatial Photonics, 68 Sporck, Charlie, 29, 31, 36 Standard Oil of New Jersey, 4

Stanford University, 12 Stone, Nelson, 23-24, 37, 39, 41, 66 Strobe photography, 3 Supreme Court, 9, 13, 15 Sutro, Jack, 5

T

Taiwan, 57 Technology licensing, 9, 14, 16, 18, 27, 32, 40-42, 45, 48 Telettra, 18 Texas Instruments [TI], 6, 9-15, 17-18, 26, 33, 39, 42, 49, 67, 69 Townsend and Townsend, 5 Trade secret, 3, 19, 21, 24, 25-27, 33, 35-37, 56, 64 Transitron, 32

U

University of Michigan, 36 University of Wisconsin, 2

V

Vadasz, Leslie, 8, 22, 30, 32, 68 Van Poplin, Joe, 34

W

Wanlass, Frank, 23 Warner, Stewart, 47, 49 Western Electric, 45-46